
TOWN OF SCOTTSVILLE 

 

 

Town Council  

Regular Session 

Monday, June 17, 2013 

Victory Hall 

401 Valley Street 

Scottsville, Virginia 

Mayor 

Jesse B. Grove III 

 

Town Council 

Shannon W. Adcock 

Nancy E. Gill 

R. Daniel Gritsko 

Elizabeth M. Knotts 

Robert E. O’Halloran  

Ronald L. Smith 

 

MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Grove called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG  

 

3. ROLL CALL of Town Council – Town Clerk Amy Moyer called the roll.  Ms. Gill, Mr. 

Gritsko, Ms. Knotts, Mr. O’Halloran, and Mr. Smith were present.  Mr. Adcock was absent.  

Also in attendance were Town Administrator George Goodwin, Town Attorney James 

Bowling IV, and Planning Commission members Dustin Caster, William Hyson, and James 

Kerlin. 

 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

4.1. Approval of Agenda 

4.2. Financial Report for May 2013 

4.3. Minutes – Work Session of March 11, 2013 

4.4. Procurement Policy for DCR Grant Funds 

 

Upon a motion by Mr. Gritsko, seconded by Mr. Smith, the consent calendar was approved 

by voice vote. 

 

5. MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

Mayor Grove noted that his extended business trip had been canceled.  He reported that there 

has been lots of activity with the Batteau Festival upcoming and the Streetscape ribbon-

cutting and Chamber of Commerce business fair in the last month.  Mayor Grove announced 

that town has received a DCR grant for its trails project.  Ms. Gill and Mr. Smith attended a 

flag-raising at the library by the Woodmen of the World. 

 

6. PUBLIC FORUM 

 

Larry Barnett spoke regarding the recent business commercials on Channel 29, crediting 

Tom Phillips of Angie & Tom’s Collectibles for organizing the spots.  Amici’s had several 

families come as a result of the commercials.  A second group of eight commercials has been 

filmed.  Barnett Real Estate, Kevin Quick, and A. Scott Ward Realty have split the cost to 

sponsor a set of commercials for the town. 

 



Regular Session Minutes 

June 17, 2013 

Page 2 of 8 

 

Nancy Carpenter addressed the council regarding her candidacy for interim Scottsville 

district supervisor. 

 

7. JOINT PUBLIC HEARING WITH PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

SUP-13-01:  Special use permit application by C & D Properties/James River Brewing for 

microbrewery use at 561 Valley Street.  (Tax Map Parcel 130A2-14, Zoning Category:  

Commercial). 

 

Mr. Kerlin called the Planning Commission meeting to order, with Mr. Caster, Mr. Hyson, 

and Mr. Smith in attendance. 

 

Mr. Kerlin opened the public hearing, noting that microbreweries are permitted by special 

use permit in the Commercial district.  No one from the public wished to speak.  Mr. Kerlin 

then closed the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Hyson moved that the Planning Commission forward the special use permit application 

to the Town Council with a recommendation for approval.  Mr. Smith seconded the motion, 

which was approved by voice vote. 

 

The Planning Commission meeting was then adjourned, and the Town Council took up the 

matter. 

 

Mr. Goodwin asked about any additional rules that go with the permit.  Mr. Goodwin 

suggested addressing the 12:30 a.m. cutoff for alcohol, the restriction that no one except 

employees is allowed above the mail floor per the Albemarle County inspector, covering the 

fire pit with a spark arrestor as recommended by the state fire marshal, and the fire 

department’s request that the outdoor furnishings be removed when there is flooding 

potential.  Mayor Grove felt that all but the first item are administrative matters between the 

owner and the various officials and departments. 

 

Mayor Grove asked if the council if it wishes to condition the use on a certain closing time, 

as it has been the general intent to have all places of entertainment serving alcoholic 

beverages to close at 12:30 a.m. 

 

Mr. Gritsko asked if this can be done separately for everybody.  Mayor Grove replied there is 

a question of whether this can be done by ordinance because the state has occupied the field 

and has its own rules.  Mr. Bowling noted that the town is specifically authorized to limit the 

duration of operation pursuant to the terms of granting a special use permit. 

 

Ms. Knotts suggested asking Dustin Caster and Chris Kyle whether they plan to stay open 

past that time except for certain holidays. 

 

Mr. Kyle replied that they certainly do not, but he questioned why this was not mentioned to 

them when they applied for a business license.  He stated that he does not have a problem 

with the closing hours, but he disagrees with making it a condition of the special use permit.  



Regular Session Minutes 

June 17, 2013 

Page 3 of 8 

 

If that is a condition of opening a business here, that should be up front prior to applying for 

a business license.  He said they obviously were a little late getting their special use permit, 

but this was never mentioned to them as a condition of opening a business.  As they promote 

themselves as a business-friendly community, he thinks it should be shown to businesses up 

front that even though the ordinances do not cover it there may be hitches when they come to 

get a use permit. 

 

Mayor Grove commented that they may have been remiss in letting the applicant know about 

this, but part of that is that the idea of a uniform closing time of 12:30 a.m. for all places of 

entertainment serving alcoholic beverages has been developing here in the council.  They 

tussled a bit over whether they can do that by ordinance but now realize that the best way is 

to make it a condition of the special use permit. 

 

Mr. Kyle asked if this is promoted to businesses moving to this town.  Mayor Grove said this 

would be known if town administration advises of it, which will be the case from now on.  

Mayor Grove noted that the council’s intent is to have this be uniform for all places of 

entertainment serving alcoholic beverages. 

 

Ms. Gill stated that they need to research the ordinance route more, as the brewery will be the 

only place to which this applies now.  Mayor Grove said that Tavern on the James has done 

so by agreement, and he believes the pool hall has it as part of its permit.  Ms. Gill asked why 

not have the same agreement with everybody rather than tacking it on to the special use 

permit.  Mr. Goodwin replied that then they would have to apply for a new ABC permit to do 

that.  Mr. Kyle remarked that he clarified with ABC that they can stay open until 2:00 a.m. 

under their permit but do not choose to do so.  Mayor Grove explained that the town has 

found that it if expresses to ABC that it wants a closing time restriction, ABC will impose it 

as part of the license.  Mr. Goodwin commented that future licenses will carry that 

restriction, as ABC sends all applications to the police chief for a recommendation. 

 

Mayor Grove agreed that it is administratively regrettable that Mr. Kyle did not get up-front 

notice that this was the policy of the town, but all others will now get that notice. 

 

Ms. Gill stated that she is not okay with that, and it needs to be done the same way for 

everybody from the very beginning.  Mayor Grove replied that they cannot undo what has 

been done.  Mr. Gritsko commented that it seems like they are ending up at the same place 

even though they are coming at it differently. 

 

Mr. Gritsko asked Mr. Kyle if he agrees to 12:30 a.m.  Mr. Kyle stated that he does not have 

a problem with it, and they are usually happy to be out of there by 9:00 or 10:00 p.m., but it 

should be within their jurisdiction as business owners to stay open later if they are busy.  Mr. 

Kyle said they run a good business and follow state law, and he hates to think they have to 

follow an ordinance that came after them that is not clear to any businesses. 

 

Mayor Grove noted that the applicant is seeking a special use permit, and they need to know 

if he will not accept the condition of closing at 12:30 a.m. before they vote.  Mr. Kyle said he 

will accept it if he is forced to.  Mr. Caster commented that he is worried about the precedent 



Regular Session Minutes 

June 17, 2013 

Page 4 of 8 

 

and feels that this condition is bullying.  Mayor Grove said he is not concerned about a 

precedent because the town now has an established policy and this will not happen again, but 

the real question is whether they as the applicant want to refuse the condition. 

 

Ms. Gill commented that her concern is this is the first time she is hearing about this.  She 

did not know that the Tavern had a special agreement.  Mayor Grove said they have had this 

discussion.  Ms. Gill said they had the discussion but nothing has been done on paper.  Mr. 

Goodwin stated that Chief Layman brought it to the work session and told them what was 

happening with ABC and what his intent was.    

 

Mr. Caster what happens next if they reject the condition and if the only way the council 

would pass this is with the condition.  Mayor Grove replied that he would have to refer that 

to the council for a decision, but he is fairly confident that the special use permit will be 

granted if they accept the condition. 

 

Mr. Caster and Mr. Kyle agreed that they would not reject that condition but they are not 

pleased. 

 

Ms. Gill asked if the Tavern has an exception for New Year’s Eve.  Mr. Goodwin said no, it 

is 12:30 a.m. 365 days a year, and that time allows for a toast for special events. 

 

Mr. Gritsko asked for Mr. Smith’s opinion as a Planning Commission member.  Mr. Smith 

replied that he wants to be fair to everyone, and if certain requirements were not stated 

specifically in use permits in the past, it does not mean they cannot start at a point and move 

forward and make sure it is done from here on out. 

 

Mr. Goodwin read from a May 13 memorandum to the Town Council:  “The Planning 

Commission discussed the application at its May 6 meeting and would like to schedule a 

joint public hearing for June 17.  A suggested condition is limiting the hours of operation to 

no later than 12:30 a.m.” 

 

Mr. Smith asked about a time limit on the special use permit.  Mayor Grove noted that the 

applicant can ask for a modification of the condition, but the permit is usually indefinite.  Mr. 

Smith recalled that the funeral home SUP has a five-year limit. 

 

Mr. Gritsko commented that they would like to give the applicant the opportunity to move 

forward as a business, and further dialog could be had after approving the SUP. 

 

Ms. Gill stated that they have a policy that she does not remember voting on. 

 

Ms. Knotts asked about special event exemptions.  Mayor Grove said exemptions were 

discussed, but the police chief does not think that is a good idea, and they have moved 

forward with other businesses on the basis of this policy. 

 

Mr. O’Halloran asked about tabling this for further discussion.  Mayor Grove said they are 

operating without the benefit of a permit right now. 



Regular Session Minutes 

June 17, 2013 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 

Mr. Smith related that he received a noise complaint about the beer garden from a Harrison 

Street resident last Friday, and he could hear the music from High Meadows on Saturday.  

Mr. Smith asked if it is appropriate to note that they are expected to follow the noise 

ordinance when passed.  Mayor Grove said it goes without saying that the ordinance would 

apply once it is passed. 

 

Mr. Bowling suggested putting it on the special use permit if the council is worried about 

noise, as the whole nature of a special use permit is to give people who live on adjoining 

properties the chance to pipe in.  Mayor Grove felt they do not have a way to craft a 

meaningful condition for noise at this time.  Mr. Bowling said that a limit on hours of 

operation would deal with noise. 

 

Mr. Gritsko asked for any further comments from the applicant.  Mr. Caster said they are 

willing to accept the Town Council’s judgment when it comes to the special use permit but 

asked if they could negotiate closing hours separately like the Tavern.  Mayor Grove noted 

that the Tavern’s agreement was written into its ABC license.  Mr. Caster asked about Joe’s.  

Mr. Goodwin said it will be added when they renew.  Mayor Grove said the owner agreed to 

12:30 a.m. and has been abiding by that.  Mayor Grove again noted that the applicant can file 

at any time to modify the conditions of the SUP. 

 

Ms. Knotts asked how many days they want to stay open past 12:30 a.m.  Mr. Caster said he 

cannot imagine more than four, but unforeseen circumstances can occur.  Ms. Knotts asked if 

other microbreweries close early.  Mr. Caster replied yes, with the exception of special 

celebrations. 

 

Mayor Grove reviewed three possible motions – grant the special use permit with no 

conditions, grant the permit with the condition of a 12:30 a.m. closing time, or deny the 

permit.  Ms. Knotts asked about special exceptions.  Mr. Smith said the council had 

previously agreed to four holidays where they could stay open until 1:00 a.m. 

 

Mr. Smith moved to grant the special use permit application with the condition that the 

closing hour be 12:30 a.m.  Mr. Gritsko seconded the motion, and a roll call vote was 

conducted. 

 

Mr. Adcock    Absent    Ms. Gill     Yes  Mr. Gritsko  Yes  

Ms. Knotts  Yes  Mr. O’Halloran Yes  Mr. Smith  Yes  

 

The motion passed 5-0. 

 

8. ADOPTION OF FY 2014 BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION 

 

Mr. Smith moved to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget and Annual Resolution of 

Appropriations.  Mr. O’Halloran seconded the motion. 

 

Mr. Adcock    Absent    Ms. Gill     Yes  Mr. Gritsko  Yes  



Regular Session Minutes 

June 17, 2013 

Page 6 of 8 

 

Ms. Knotts  Yes  Mr. O’Halloran Yes  Mr. Smith  Yes  

 

The motion passed 5-0.  The Fiscal Year 2014 Budget and Annual Resolution of 

Appropriations are attached to the original of these minutes. 

 

9. FY 2013 SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 

Mayor Grove noted that the Town Council reviewed these appropriations at the work session.  

Included are administrative bonuses, expenses for the farmers’ market restrooms, tree 

removal and grass planting for flood control, railings at the municipal building, sign 

replacement, tree replacement, parking lot striping, and railing replacement at the drug store. 

 

Ms. Knotts moved to pass the supplemental appropriations.  Mr. O’Halloran seconded the 

motion. 

 

Mr. Smith asked why the farmers’ market restroom includes $2,100 in additional labor that 

was not on the list at the work session.  Mr. Goodwin replied that the labor was required to 

finish the restrooms as opposed to waiting for volunteers.  Ms. Gill asked if the money has 

already been spent.  Mr. Goodwin replied yes, he and Mayor Grove discussed the need to 

have the restrooms finished for Batteau Festival and the Fourth of July. 

 

A roll call vote was conducted. 

 

Mr. Adcock    Absent    Ms. Gill     Yes  Mr. Gritsko  Yes  

Ms. Knotts  Yes  Mr. O’Halloran Yes  Mr. Smith  Yes  

 

The motion passed 5-0.  The FY 2013 Supplemental Appropriations are attached to the 

original of these minutes. 

 

10. REPORTS OF CHARTERED COMMITTEES, PLANNING COMMISSION, AND 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 

 

Chamber of Commerce:  Mr. Smith reported on the successful first-time business fair. 

 

Architectural Review Board:  Mr. O’Halloran reported that the ARB approved a COA for a 

handrail at 620 Harrison Street and a renovated retaining wall at 220 Jackson Street.  Thacker 

Brothers Funeral Home has proposed changes to add a crematory.  No action was taken on 

440 Valley Street as the owner did not attend.  The sign proposed for Cutting Loose is too 

large.  The Crow’s Nest sign will be removed. 

 

Mr. Smith commented that several jurisdictions are giving July 5 off.  Mr. Smith moved to 

suspend the rules of procedure and consider a motion to close the Town Office on July 5.  

Mr. Gritsko seconded the motion, which was approved by voice vote. 

 

Town Maintenance Committee:  Ms. Knotts reported that the committee will meet on 

Wednesday at 5:00 p.m. 



Regular Session Minutes 

June 17, 2013 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 

Tourism Committee:  Mr. Gritsko reported that the town received a DCR grant for a bridge 

and walkway to the Van Clief Nature Area.  The committee will meet this week to look at 

designs and the bidding process.  A town tour is planned for Wednesday at 6:15 p.m. 

 

Government Services Committee:  Ms. Gill noted the donation of a water fountain by the 

library.  The committee discussed town ordinances and is working with Mr. Bowling on 

revisions. 

 

11. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

 

Mr. Goodwin reported that the funeral home has inquired about adding a crematory.  Mayor 

Grove noted that this would go to the Planning Commission and then the Town Council. 

 

Mr. Goodwin reported that VDOT has approved Dollar General’s plans to relocate to the 

current Scottsville Tire location.  Mr. Goodwin complimented David Becker on his work to 

clean up the town.  Mr. Goodwin also reported that the town truck had its windshield 

replaced for inspection. 

 

Mayor Grove asked to suspend the rules to consider one more agenda item.  He noted that 

Shannon Adcock can no longer serve as he has moved and is no longer a resident of the 

town.  Mr. Adcock has advised the town administrator that he intends to resign but has not 

submitted a resignation letter yet.  Mr. Bowling has informed him that the council may 

suspend its rules to accept the oral resignation of Mr. Adcock, and that would enable them to 

move forward with the process of filling the seat. 

 

Mr. Gritsko moved to suspend the rules of procedure.  Mr. Smith seconded the motion, 

which was approved by voice vote. 

 

Mr. Smith moved to accept Shannon Adcock’s oral resignation.  Mr. O’Halloran seconded 

the motion, and a roll call vote was conducted. 

 

Mr. Adcock    Absent    Ms. Gill     Yes  Mr. Gritsko  Yes  

Ms. Knotts  Yes  Mr. O’Halloran Yes  Mr. Smith  Yes  

 

The motion passed 5-0. 

 

Mr. Smith related that he received an email form a resident concerned about the volume of 

music at the farmers’ market pavilion on Sunday morning.  He suggests that the group direct 

its speakers towards the river instead of towards the town. 

 

Mr. Gritsko moved to adopt a resolution expressing thanks to Shannon Adcock for his 

service.  Mr. Smith seconded the motion, which was approved by voice vote. 

 

Ms. Knotts asked about the gratitude item for Elizabeth Schoenborn’s work on the Batteau 

Festival.  Mr. Goodwin replied that he will have one 



Regular Session Minutes 

June 17, 2013 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT – Upon a motion by Mr. O’Halloran, seconded by Mr. Gritsko, the 

meeting was adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 

 


